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MR. BUCKLEY: Last Sunday Senator
Edward Kennedy proposed in The New York
Times that Presicent Nixon having, after all,
gone to China and reestablished informal
relations there, there is no purpose left to be
served in continuing to ostracize Cuba.

Mr.  Kennedy’s point struck many
people as logically compelling, as we see the
ongoing collapse of commitments and
alliances annealed by the spirit of resistance
of communism a generation ago. Among
greater and lesser casualties of that
dissolution is the Central Intelligence
Agency, whose organizing bias, if you will,
was the postwar decision to let communism
move no further.

To discuss these points we have two
guests. Mr. Mario Lazo became an American
citizen only a few days ago, though he has
lived half his life here, the other half in
Cuba. He was among the two or three best
known lawyers in Havana, the founder of a
huge firm well known, among other things,
for its philanthropic activities. He left Cuba
after the Bay of Pigs and published a year or
50 ago a definitive account of the failure of
the move to liberate Cuba, Dagger in the
Heart.

Howard Hunt was intimately involved
as an official in the CIA in the Bay of Pigs.
Indeed, The New York Times named him as
the principal CIA official directly involved in
that venture.

He is a graduate of Brown University
who was a war correspondent for Life
magazine, a free-lance writer who has
published 42 books, most of them spy
novels. On retiring from the CIA after 20
years of duty, he did free-lance work as a
White House consultant, and last June was
arrested in connection with the Watergate
case. Last Monday he pleaded guilty before a
Federal court, and the sentencing is yet to
come.

The presiding judge and Mr. Hunt’s
own lawyer have forbidden him to speak
about Watergate, but his involvement there
has  not, presumably,  diminished his
knowledge of the CIA and Cuba and his
special qualifications born  of  long
experience to discuss the CIA and foreign
policy.

The lawyers from Washington have
only just now advised us that we may not
submit to questioning as usual by the panel,
to whom | apologize.

I should like to begin by asking Mr.
Hunt whether his public identification as a
long time CIA official confers upon him now
the right, if only in self-defense, to describe

with appropriate discretion some of the
activities of the CIA, particularly as they
relate to Cuba?

MR. HUNT: | believe that it does, Mr.
Buckley. After all, it was not | who
identified myself as a former employee,
officer, official of the Central Intelligence
Agency. That information came from the
government itself. And | considered it then
and | consider it now unilateral abrogation
by the government of a commitment that we
entered into upon my retirement from the
Central Intelligence Agency.

MR. BUCKLEY: Your point is that when
you were arrested, somebody in the
government —

MR. HUNT: May | interject?
MR. BUCKLEY: Yes.
MR. HUNT: | was never arrested.

MR. BUCKLEY: When you were what,
detained or —

MR.  HUNT: I surrendered to U.S.
authorities at the appropriate time.

MR. BUCKLEY?: Yes.

MR. HUNT: But | was never at any time
arrested.

MR. BUCKLEY: Well, was there at that
point a warrant for your arrest?

MR. HUNT: No warrant was ever issued for
me. | was never a fugitive.

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes. But at that point, as |
understand it, the fact of your having been
associated with the CIA was for the first
time publicly ventilated.

MR. HUNT: That is correct, ves.

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes. Now, does this mean
that you can speak about vourself as having
been a member of the CIA with moral
impunity? Or does it mean that you can go
further than that and describe some of the
activities of CIA in Cuba and some of the
forecasts for CIA in the current mood of
detente?

MR. HUNT: | feel that I’'m able to do that,
yes.



MR. BUCKLEY: Okay, then let me ask you
a direct question. The CIA is not permitted,
as | understand it, to engage in domestic
activity, right?

MR. HUNT: Correct.

MR. BUCKLEY: Now, does that mean that
nobody has any right to suspect that the
Watergate business was a CIA operation?

MR. HUNT: No. Perhaps | shouldn’t have
answered  your earlier question as
definitively as 1 did. It is known, for
example, that the CIA at one time was
involved in domestic operaticns and | cite
the disclosure of —

MR. BUCKLEY: The NSA business?

MR. HUNT: — CIA support of the National
Student Association. That was a domestic
operation.

MR. BUCKLEY: But for purposes of foreign
travel, wasn’t it?

MR. HUNT: Not solely, no. They recruited
American students on U.S. campuses for
work in this country which led eventually to
work abroad.

MR. BUCKLEY: Well, what about the
suspicion that has been widely ventilated
that experience, especially lifelong
experience, with the CIA teaches a person to
forget about the legal impediments that lie
between him and the accomplishment of a
mission that he seeks to achieve? In the
grown-up world, as | wunderstand it,
everybody recognizes that it is illegal for a
CIA operative to work in Cuba and it's
illegal for a Cuban operative to work in the
United States, but they both do it.

MR. HUNT: Yes.

MR. BUCKLEY: Now, under the
circumstances, | guess the question I'm
asking is if one spends 20 years working for
the CIA, is it likely that on returning to
one’s own country one has so much
absorbed the ethos of the CIA that one
tends to go after what it is that one wants
and to consider local legislation that stands
in the way as sort of irrelevant?

MR. HUNT: If one even were to consider
local legislation, it would not be illegal under
United States law, for example, for CIA to

mount an entry operation in Ottawa or Ft.
Erie, Canada, the other side of the Peace
Bridge.

But here we have a geographical
distinction. We would not be guilty under
United States law of, let's say, a
second-degree burglary charge by the United
States for an operation that we conducted in
Canada or in Mexico. We would be, were it
conducted in Florida or Texas or Southern
California.

MR. BUCKLEY: Well, | wish to —
MR. HUNT: Am | answering —

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes, you are, and | wish to
be very explicit about it. | want to abide by
the ground rules and not try any sneak
punches.

But | guess what I'm asking is: Is it fair
to say, without violating our understanding,
that in approaching the Watergate business,
you and your associates approached it in the
spirit of a CIA operation?

MR. HUNT: Yes.

MR. BUCKLEY: Now, Mr. Lazo, may | ask
you this? At what point did you understand
the CIA to be engaged in an operation, the
objective of which was the deposition of
Castro?

MR. LAZO: At what point did | understand
the CIA to be —

MR. BUCKLEY: Historically, at what point,
yes.

MR. LAZO: — engaged in what?

MR. BUCKLEY: In an operation, the
objective of which was the deposition of
Castro?

MR. LAZO: Well, | would say that goes back
to the Bay of Pigs.

MR. BUCKLEY: Surely not — not before
then? You didn't know the CIA wanted to
oust Castro until the Bay of Pigs, until the
Marines landed?

MR. LAZO: No, | think that was the first
time that | remember. You have something
else in mind? If you ask me, I'll be glad to
answer you.

MR. BUCKLEY: Well, you were living in



Havana as a Cuban citizen —
MR. LAZO: That's right.

MR. BUCKLEY: — and, as | understand it,
you were helping out agencies of a foreign
country, including indirectly Mr. Hunt, who
were pursuing the orders of the President of
the United States. I'm asking you, did you
know what those orders were?

MR. LAZO: Well, Mr. Buckley, look, my
partner and | worked for many years with
the CIA and the FBI. Anything we could do
to help them we did.

MR. BUCKLEY: Was this in violation of
Cuban law?

MR. LAZO: No, no, this —

MR. BUCKLEY: It's okay to work with a
foreign —

MR. LAZO: And furthermore, at that time
there was no country that was closer to the
United States than Cuba.

MR. BUCKLEY: I'm talking about
post-Castro. I'm not talking about during
pre-Castro. Were you working with the CIA
or the FBI after Castro came to power? If
you don’t want to answer, just say so. If you
say you don’t want to answer, | understand.

MR. LAZO: No, no, | want to answer, but
on the — | never worked professionally with
either one. | worked, and we helped them in
every way we could. As a matter of fact, a
year after Castro came to power, in January
1960, when the American embassy went
down, | became a self-appointed spy for the
u.s.

MR. BUCKLEY: That surely was illegal,
wasn’t it?

MR. LAZO: Sure, it was illegal, and by that
time we knew where the country was
heading. Castro had shown his colors. And
what | did was to arrange with a friendly
European government to send reports once a
week to the FBI in this country.

MR. BUCKLEY: Concerning what?
MR. LAZO: What?

MR. BUCKLEY: Reports concerning what?

MR. LAZO: Reports of everything that was
happening in Cuba that the United States
should know. For instance, we represented
the railroads of Cuba and we had about 35
inspectors out. They were reporting from all
over the country and the main office of the
railroad was right under our office. They
would give us reports all the time, and we
would pass them to the American embassy.
My sympathies have always been with the
United States.

Now, as | was saying, when the
embassy went down and it seemed to me
that the United States didn‘t have very good
sources of information any more, then |
would send reports once a week by a courier
who would go from Havana to New York to
the capital of this country in Europe, and he
would drop off my report. That was to the
FBI. Nobody asked me to do that. Nobody
ever thanked me for it. Nobody ever paid
me for it. | didn’t expect any thanks.

MR. BUCKLEY: So you were really a
volunteer collecting information?

MR. LAZO: Yes, sure.

MR. BUCKLEY: All right, now going back
to Washington, 1'd like to ask this of Mr.
Hunt. The Bay of Pigs is often referred to as
the greatest fiasco in postwar American
history, and reference to it is usually used to
inspire some sort of a disdain for CIA.

Now I’d like to ask you a two-part
question. Number one, was it a failure of
intelligence by CIA that resulted in the
fiasco? And number two, if it was more than
that — if it was a political failure in
Washington — is it a responsibility of CIA to
make recommendations with reference to
their anticipation of the fortitude in
Washington?

MR. HUNT: Let me answer as follows, and |
want to answer it as completely and as
responsibly as | can. First, the fiasco of the
Bay of Pigs —

MR. BUCKLEY: A little louder, please.

MR. HUNT: The fiasco of the Bay of Pigs
was not a failure of intelligence. It was not a
failure of intelligence collection or of
positive intelligence operations.

The failure of the Bay of Pigs came
about  because at a critical time
commitments that had been made by high
officials of the United States government to
the Cubans who were fighting, to their



leadership in Miami and elsewhere — those
officials backed away from those
commitments and, in effect, abandoned the
brigade at the beachhead. That was a
political decision. CIA never had any reason
to believe that these commitments would be
abandoned. We had, after all, been recruiting
the Cubans, sending them to training camps
in Guatemala for many, many months.

These were the ground rules. First of
all, there was the United States’ fleet
offshore; the Boxer was the flagship.
Secondly, the principal thing that the
Cubans were interested in was that they not
be opposed at the beachhead by Castro air
power, and this was a definite commitment
that was made.

Now, this commitment was made by
the Eisenhower Administration in which
President Nixon served as vice-president, and
I believe he chaired the National Security
Council in that capacity. So, in effect, the
commitment that was made to the Cubans
who went forward and risked their lives was
nullified by a subsequent political decision
of the New Frontier.

MR. BUCKLEY: Well, was there anything to
lead you to believe, between the
inauguration of President Kennedy and the
Bay of Pigs, that he had had second thoughts
about it?

MR. HUNT: There was this: first
of all, during the campaign, President
Kennedy — then Senator Kennedy —
campaigned on a promise of help to the
Cuban exiles. Vice-President Nixon, who was
intimately involved with the operational
planning from his position in the National
Security Council, could not rebut or refute
the Kennedy argument because his lips were
sealed. He knew —

MR. BUCKLEY: What Kennedy argument?

MR. HUNT: — in fact, what we were doing.
The Kennedy argument that the United
States should do something to help
overthrow Castro.

MR. BUCKLEY: Why would he want to
refute it? Oh, you mean he couldn’t say,
"Yes, indeed | agree with him and in fact we
intend to — "

MR. HUNT: “And in fact we are so doing,”
yes.

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes.

MR. HUNT: Evidently, the political decision
was made to say nothing about it. So this
was a plus factor in the Kennedy-Nixon
debates, a plus factor for Kennedy.

MR. BUCKLEY: You mean that Kennedy —

MR. HUNT: Kennedy actually knew, of
course, what we were doing —

MR. BUCKLEY: — emerged more hawkish
than Nixon?

MR. HUNT: Yes, that's right. And Kennedy
knew perfectly well what we were doing
because he was receiving, as the Democratic
candidate, daily briefings from CIA. And he
was taking advantage of that knowledge.

MR. BUCKLEY: Daily briefings from Drew
Pearson?

MR. HUNT: Quite conceivably, too.
MR. BUCKLEY: Yes.

MR. HUNT: Again, to answer, perhaps more
specifically, your question, shortly after the
election and it was made known that
Kennedy had been elected, we were ordered
to close down all recruiting and training
activities for the time being. Everything was
put into suspense.

During this period Allen Dulles, Dick
Bissell, some of the other principal officers
of CIA went down to the Kennedy Palm
Beach compound and told him exactly what
the situation was. In due course, after about
two or three weeks, the commitment was
made, “Go ahead. Continue as before.”

MR. BUCKLEY: Was confirmed, yes.

MR. HUNT: Yes. To us, that was perfectly
understandable that an incoming President
would want to review what his predecessors
had done. There was no intimation from
them — and certainly no inference on our
part — that there would be a drawing away
from the overall commitment, which was to
overthrow Castro and regain Cuba for the
free world.

MR. BUCKLEY: Right. Senator Kennedy
has said —

MR. HUNT: Senator Edward Kennedy.

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes, sorry, Edward
Kennedy has said, apropos of this situation,



that only an armed invasion would have
succeeded in causing Castro to be
overthrown. Now, | take it everybody agrees
that was the case when Castro first took
power. He was very popular at that point.
To what extent was the intelligence
reckoning on the Bay of Pigs dependent on a
view of a transformed attitude’ toward
Castro by the Cuban people? Did you
proceed — and 1'd like Mr. Lazo also to
comment on this — on the assumption that
people whose mission it was to overthrow
Castro would be universally welcomed?

MR. HUNT: Not universally, no, but
certainly by a majority of the Cuban people.
This is not to say that we viewed the Cuban
citizenry under Castro as a military asset to
ourselves. We viewed them as probably being
responsive to early indications of victory and
of overwhelming force that we intended to
show.

Again, | should bring out that the New
Frontier did dilute our original plans.
Instead of an armed airborne envelopment
of the central city in Cuba, this was
minimized, apparently by Dean Rusk. |
bring out a number of these points in a
forthcoming book which 1've written on the
subject, called Give Us This Day, and it's
subtitled, C/A and The Bay of Pigs Invasion.

MR. BUCKLEY: And it
changes —

details these

MR. HUNT: It details these changes, vyes.

MR. BUCKLEY: —in plan, yes.

MR. HUNT: That is correct.

MR. BUCKLEY: Well, Mr. Lazo, what is
your comment then about the attitude of
the Cuban people in April of 1961?

MR. LAZO: 1 hope that you won't think

that this is a digression, but may | go back a
little bit —

MR. BUCKLEY: Sure, sure.

MR. LAZO: — and tell you about how | met
Bernard Barker, who is one of the Watergate
group —

MR. BUCKLEY: Sure, sure.

MR. LAZO: — and who was very active in
the Bay of Pigs?

MR. BUCKLEY: Sure.
MR. LAZO: May | do that?
MR. BUCKLEY: Of course.

MR. LAZO: It has a bearing on this. Barker
was brought to my office shortly after World
War 11 by the military attaché of the
American embassy, a fellow named Colonel
Buzz Glenn. His problem was that he had
done security work to protect Mrs. Truman
and Margaret Truman on a visit they had
made to Cuba.

MR. BUCKLEY: As a
Barker?

Cuban citizen,

MR. LAZO: He was an American citizen.
MR. BUCKLEY: American citizen.

MR. LAZO: He spoke perfect Spanish; he
was born in Cuba, | believe. The Cubans
asked him if he would head a group to give
this security to Mrs. Truman and Margaret
Truman.

He was glad to do that. That’s not
done in the way that you would normally
think. For instance, they don’t follow them
around in a patrol car or anything like that.
The way they do that is that they assign
Cuban secret service men to the various dives
and places where the underworld gathers in
Havana, which is a city of a million people.

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes.

MR. LAZO: These people are disguised.
Sometimes they feign intoxication, although
the Cubans don’t drink very much, and they
keep their eyes open and their ears open,
and if they see anything suspicious or hear
anything, they follow them and they do
plenty of bugging of telephones. And that
goes on for a week or ten days.

Barker was the head of this Cuban
group, you see, but in taking this job he had
signed a police form which was handed to
him, and it turned out that this police form
contained an oath of allegiance to Cuba.
And some kid in the embassy heard about it
and reported to Washington. And then they
took away his citizenship.

And Colonel Glenn, when he brought
Barker to me, said, Mario, this fellow has
had a wonderful war record. He was a
captain in the American Air Force. He was
the first fellow to volunteer from Cuba. He
had something like 12 missions over



Germany. He was shot down. He was in
prison there. And | wish you'd help him.
Everybody admires him."”’ So, of course | did
help him, and that was arranged.

Now, the second thing that happened
was a little more dramatic. This was in early
1960 after Castro had been in power about a
year. Barker came to me one time
distraught, nervous, and his problem then
was that he had had hiding in his house his
closest friend, who had been doing
counterrevolutionary work. He had been
there a couple of weeks and finally had
decided to make a move and got caught.
Under the pressure of torture, he had
confessed where he was,

Barker had wisely arranged to call his
wife every two hours from a pay station in
Havana to a grocery store near their house in
the suburbs. He had a daughter, a little girl
by the name of Maria-Elena, Helen, who was
about 10 years old and they had one faithful
servant.

Barker thought | could get him out
because we represented a couple of the
American airlines. He’s a very intelligent
fellow, but he was, as | say, distraught. He
wasn’t thinking very straight. Of course to
harbor a so-called ““criminal’’ was a capital
offense, too, so Barker was in danger of
being killed.

So, | told him exactly what you would
have told him. | said, “Bernard, what you do
now is call up your wife and you tell her not
to admit under any circumstances that this
fellow’s been in your house in the last six
months. He knows what your house looks
like because he’s been there, but he hasn’t
been there for six months. And tell that
little girl of yours to say the same thing, and
your servant to say the same thing. And
never deviate from that. And I']| do what |
can to get this boy to change his story
before he dies.”

So, in those days they permitted one
member of the family to see somebody who
was about to be executed, and in this case it
was this boy’s sister. She was a very
attractive Cuban girl, about 25 — typical
Cuban girl with pale, powder white skin,
ebony black hair, flashing eyes, long
eyelashes, high-spirited girl. And | went to
see her, and 1 said, “Will you help my
friend?”” And she said, "Of course. Your
friend did everything he could to save my
brother. Now we have to try to save him.””

I arranged for a launch to go across the
bay to Cabafas Fortress to see the
execution. And as the priest was moving
away and the squad was getting ready to

fire, this fellow began screaming - in
Spanish, of course. He said, “One more thing
that | want to say — that | haven’t been in
Bernard Barker’s house in six months.”” And
he kept on repeating that until they shot
him.

But he was a very nice looking fellow
and they didn’t want to shoot him. As a
matter of fact, only one bullet hit him, and
he slumped down. Two men went up and
lifted him and strapped him up on the post,
and then the man in charge of the squad told
them if they didn’t shoot him they would be
court-martialed. Then they shot him; they
killed him. And two days later we sprung
Bernard Barker.

Then he came to my office and he
said, 'l want you to tell me what | can do to
help bring down the monster who murdered
my best friend.” And | took him over to the
American embassy and introduced him to
the CIA agent there, and that's the way he
started working for the CIA.

MR. BUCKLEY: But let me ask you this,
Mr. Lazo.

MR. LAZO: Yes,

MR. BUCKLEY: Aren’t you using a
terminology that is justified by a rather
dangerous use of the law?

MR. LAZO: By what?

MR. BUCKLEY: By a rather dangerous use
of the law. | thoroughly sympathize with
your and Barker’s, let alone the dead man’s,
ambition to remove Castro, but | don't
understand really that we can persuasively
challenge the right of a country, however
tyrannical its leader, to attempt to kijll
counterrevolutionaries. If the ambition of
Barker or of Hunt, let’s say, working in Cuba
is to ovérthrow Castro, | should think if
Castro finds out about it, he’s got aright to
shoot you. Now, that isnt murder. You, as a
lawyer, would know that. It is not murder.

MR. LAZO: Just a second. Just a second.
I'm surprised that a man of your intelligence
should be talking the way you're talking.
Fidel Castro has killed — murderecd — 25,000
boys and men whose only crime was that
they clung to their democratic ideals. They
were against communism.

MR. BUCKLEY: I'm on this side and | hope
they win, but | say if they get caught at it,
they‘re going to be executed —



MR. LAZO: Of course.

MR. BUCKLEY: — and this isn"t murder
under any law | know about.

MR. LAZO: If they get caught at it, they get
executed.

MR. BUCKLEY: If King George had caught
George Washington, he'd have hung him.

MR. LAZO: Yes.

MR. BUCKLEY: And this would have been
something that you and | would have
regretted —

MR. LAZO: Sure.

MR. BUCKLEY: — but it is not something
that would have been illegal under any known
code.

MR. LAZO: Excuse me just a second. If
you'd been living in George Washington's
time, you would have done everything
possible to help him escape.

MR. HUNT: Isn’t the distinction this —
MR. BUCKLEY: Sure. That’s what —

MR. HUNT: May | suggest this? King George
was a constitutional monarch, or at least he
was a recognized monarch. He overthrew
nobody to achieve his position in Great
Britain. Castro, on the other hand, threw
out —

MR. BUCKLEY: In the first place, his
ancestors did. In the second place, Castro
was recognized at the time we're talking
about by every country in the world,
including the United States —

MR. LAZO: That’s correct.
MR. BUCKLEY: — as the legitimate leader.

MR. HUNT: However, large segments of the
Cuban population did not recognize him as
their leader.

MR. BUCKLEY: No, but that's their risk.
You can always appeal sub specie
aeternitatis and say, “’Sic semper tyrannis,”’
and try to put a bullet hole in the tyrant’s
heart, and | hope that the aim is sure. But |
think that Mr. Lazo is confusing people by

using the terminology of “‘murdered,”
“so-called criminal.” He wasn’t a so-called
criminal; he was a criminal, by Cuban law.

MR. LAZO: They don't consider it's
murder. The Communists don’t consider it’s
murder.

MR. BUCKLEY: I know. | know, because —

MR. LAZO: They have one rule of morality:
Anything that advances the conquest of the
world by Communist empire is good. You
can lie; you can steal; you can kill. Killing is
not murder to them. It’s a good thing. It’s
not what we consider murder. | go along
with you on that. Anything that hinders
them is bad. That’s the only —

MR. BUCKLEY: | agree with you, but look.
If you had taken the case of the man whom
you saw executed to the International
Council of Jurists, you could not have made
a case that they would have heard.

MR. LAZO: No.

MR. BUCKLEY: Because if in fact he was
engaged — and you have volunteered th
information that he was = in

counterrevolutionary activity, and the crime
for that was capital, and he received that
capital sentence, that's the way it is.

MR. LAZO: I'm not talking about legal
details. I'm talking about the fact that
Castro has murdered, in my opinion, 25,000
men and boys whose only crime was that
they clung to their democratic ideals, taught
by the United States — don’t forget that.
And if you had a Castro as the chief of state
of this country, relatively, in proportion to
population, he would have killed 565,000
Americans, and that’s just the killing. Now,
how about the people in prison, the political
prisoners?

MR. BUCKLEY: No, look, let's not waste
any time in your trying to persuade me that
Castro is an evil man because | agree with
you. | think he’s probably as thorough a
tyrant as the 20th century has produced, as
thorough in his own scale. But we’re talking
about something else. We're talking about
the United States, its intelligence arm, the
risks it takes, the bearing of an experience in
that kind of affair on domestic life. And it
may very well be thatsomebody like Barker
— it's easier to talk about Barker than about
Howard Hunt because we're talking about



somebody who isn‘t here — is totally seized
as the result of his experience in Cuba —

MR. LAZO: Totally what?

MR. BUCKLEY: Totally seized with a single
objective, and that single objective is to do
what he can for liberty as he understands it.

MR. LAZO: And for the United States?
MR. BUCKLEY: Right.

MR. LAZO: And against the Communists,
yes.

MR. BUCKLEY: Right, but in the course of
applying that kind of license to activities, he
tripped against an American law and as a
result of that has pleaded guilty. Now, what
is your attitude toward Barker?

MR. LAZO: Well, just a second. You're
coming to Watergate now, right? You want
me to speak about that?

MR. BUCKLEY: Can he and | speak about
Watergate without violating our code?

MR. HUNT: I would think so, but may | just
go back a step before you do that?

MR. BUCKLEY: Sure.

MR. HUNT: You had asked me about the
failure of intelligence and whether or not
CIA had expected a popular uprising, in
effect, or whether the Administration had.

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes.

MR. HUNT: | have a list here of
recommendations that | made well before |
joined the project, based on my personal
assessment of the situation in Cuba. | made
this in 1959, and | will list them. The first
recommendation | made was to destroy the
Cuban radio and television transmitters
before or coincident with the invasion. The
second was to destroy the island’s
microwave relay system just before the
invasion begins, and the third, discard any
thought of a popular uprising against Castro
until the issue has already been militarily
decided.

MR. BUCKLEY: And your point is what —
that history bears you out?

MR. HUNT: My point is simply that we did

not at any time expect a popular uprising.
We expected acceptance of our troops.

MR. BUCKLEY: Well, this was 1959. Castro
was still popular, wasn’t he?

MR. HUNT: He was still popular, yes.

MR. BUCKLEY: But he was dramatically
less popular in '61.

MR. HUNT: In ‘61, vyes.

MR. LAZO: May | speak about the
Watergate and Bernard Barker and my Miami
friends and —

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes.

MR. LAZO: To understand Watergate
you've got to understand, in the first place,
the Bay of Pigs. We've been talking about
that. And you've got to understand the
conditions in Cuba at the time of the
election here in order to understand why
these people went into Watergate.

Let me go back to the Bay of Pigs just
a second. The Bay of Pigs was a struggle that
took place in Washington, not in Cuba. It
was a struggle between the liberal
presidential advisors on the one hand and
the conservative CIA and the Pentagon on
the other. In between these two groups was
the new President, who has never been
accused of lacking either intelligence or
courage, but he sided with his liberal
advisors.

The key point in this invasion was the
destruction of Castro’s tiny air force, on the
ground before the invaders hit the beaches.
This was to be done by three air strikes of
16 planes each coming from Nicaragua to
the south coast of Cuba, 48 sorties
minimum. They knew where Castro’s planes
were. They were being watched by American
reconnaissance, by the U-2.

What happened was this: The first
strike of 16 planes was cut in half by orders
from the White House. The second strike
was cancelled entirely. The third strike, after
it was too late to call off the invasion, was
cancelled entirely. So that instead of having
48 sorties,  minimum, you had eight. And
they destroyed almost all of Castro’s air force
on the ground, but Castro was left with
three jets — two Sea Furies — and they
commanded the skies.

The Cuban freedom fighters were
flying from Nicaragua three and a half hours
to the beachhead, and they had 20 minutes
to 30 minutes over the target, and then three



and a half hours back. | thought of that
yesterday when | flew from Hartford here,
seven hours to be over the target for 30
minutes at the most, and Castro’s jets, which
were fueling nearby, flew in two at the same
time and slaughtered them.

MR. BUCKLEY: What does this have to do
with Barker?

MR. LAZO: It has a great deal to do with
Barker because Barker was one of the high
level men in the invasion, and he saw this
thing happen by orders — decisions for
disaster taken in Washington. He was — |
don’t know what the word is — absolutely
humiliated by what happened. He can never
forget this.

Barker is a great patriot from the point
of view of the United States, but he loves
Cuba, too. And he saw that Cuba had been
betrayed — | use the word deliberately. The
Cuban brigade on the beach was betrayed.
They had been told that they would have
continuing supplies to the beach. They never
got any supplies. The Castro jets sank two of
the five ships. They destroyed half of the
Cuban planes the first day —

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes, but we're not here to
talk about the Bay of Pigs, really, except
insofar as it bears on current proceedings.
After all, we can talk about Waterloo or we
can talk about —

MR. LAZO: All right.

MR. BUCKLEY: — Gettysburg, and discuss
military mistakes —

MR. LAZO: Yes, all right, let’s cut —

MR. BUCKLEY: But go on and tell me what
all this has to do — let’s simply accept that
the military handiing of the Bay of Pigs was
catastrophic. Everybody knows that. Now,
what does that have to do with Barker?

MR. HUNT: Military? Political handling.

MR. BUCKLEY: Military and political,
right, yes. They often go hand in hand. Now,
what has it got to do with Barker, since
we've been licensed to discuss his relationship
to Watergate.

MR. LAZO: Here's where it has to do with
Barker. Let’s come now to November of last
year, the time of the election.

Now, we know about the Bay of Pigs

and we know how Barker felt about that. We
also have to know something about the
conditions in Cuba last November. You
don‘t know much about that because the
attention of the Americans is focused on
Southeast Asia. Cuba’s not in the news. But
Castro is now facing the greatest crisis that
he’s ever faced, and everything is going
against him. His regime is coming to an end.
To understand this you must remember that
when he came to power the Cubans were
among the better fed people of the world.
That’s not Lazo speaking; that's the
Department of Agriculture in Washington.
And today everything’s rationed. Butter,
bread, sugar, tobacco, everything’s rationed
except \hate-America  propaganda, hate-
Nixon propaganda. That's the only thing
that's not rationed. Every hour of the day
the controlled radio pours out hatred for the
United States.

I must mention the sugar crop. Two or
three years ago Castro promised the Cubans
a 10 million ton crop. Actually the crop last
year was four million, which is what Cuba
made 50 years ago, and four million in spite
of the fact that he used the entire country to
harvest it. We used to harvest a —

MR. BUCKLEY: He confessed his failure. As
a matter of fact he offered to resign; from
time to time he does — you remember, a
summer or so ago?

MR. LAZO: What's that?

MR. BUCKLEY: He confessed his own
failure. So go ahead. We know about the
failure of Castroism.

MR. LAZO: Yes.

MR. BUCKLEY: But go ahead now and
relate that, please, to American policy.

MR. LAZO: The point is that this year he'll
probably make about three and a half
million tons. That’s their money crop. That’s
the way they get their money to import
things. So Castro knows that his only hope is
to be recognized by the United States.

MR. BUCKLEY: Why? Because we would
give foreign aid, you mean?

MR. LAZO: No. Because the United States
would then supply all the spare parts, the
equipment and everything else that the
Soviet bloc has been unable to supply.



MR. BUCKLEY: Why has the Soviet bloc
been unable to supply it? Can't they get it
from us?

MR. LAZO: One reason, it's too far away.
They get their petroleum from the Black
Sea.

MR. BUCKLEY: Why is that too far?

MR. LAZO: What?

MR. BUCKLEY: Why is that too far? You
just go on a couple days extra on the
steamer.

MR. LAZO: You mean why is the Black Sea
too far?

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes.

MR. LAZO: Well, it's pretty far compared
with Venezuela.

MR. BUCKLEY: If the Soviet Union desires
to supply Cuba, it can.

MR. LAZO: Well, it's not doing it very well.

MR. BUCKLEY: Well, then it decides it
doesn’t want to. It's a political point, right?
It’s certainly not a logistical point.

MR. LAZO: The Soviets don't do anything
very well, and they’re  not doing this very
well.

MR. BUCKLEY: They've managed their
propaganda pretty effectively.

MR. LAZO: Except the propaganda. They
do that very well.

However, here is Castro in November,
1972, knowing that he’s through, that he has
to die, and his one chance of surviving is to
get recognition and help from the United
States. He can't get that from the
Republicans. His one chance was to get it
from the Democrats, from McGovern, Ted
Kennedy, Fulbright. All these fellows are in
favor of doing business with Castro.

MR. BUCKLEY: Why couldn’t he count on
Nixon? After all, who would have thought
that the Red Chinese could count on Nixon?

MR. LAZO: Why couldn’t he count on
Nixon?

MR. BUCKLEY: Sure.

MR. LAZO: Well —

MR. BUCKLEY: If Nixon turned around
and recognized Cuba tomorrow, it would
hardly begin to occupy as much acreage on
the front page as what he did to China last
year, which made him a hero.

MR. LAZO: Mr. Buckley, let me say that |
may disagree with you on one thing. |
consider Nixon to be a genuine
anti-Communist and the fact  that he has
travelled to Moscow and Peking has
absolutely nothing to do with Cuba,

MR. BUCKLEY: Why shouldn’t he travel to
Havana?

MR. LAZO: What?

MR. BUCKLEY: Why shouldn’t he travel to
Havana?

MR. LAZO: This is a
entirely.

different thing

MR. BUCKLEY: Why?

MR. LAZO: Because the other countries are
great countries. Russia has your population.
The Soviets have a quarter —

MR. BUCKLEY: Our population —
MR. LAZO: Well — the size, 200 million.

MR. BUCKLEY: — now that you're an
American citizen.

(laughter)

MR. LAZO: And the Chinese have a quarter
of the population of the world.

MR. BUCKLEY: In other words, he's afraid
of Russia and, therefore, he has to be
courteous and gallant toward it.

MR. LAZO: That's true —

MR. BUCKLEY: But Cuba’s a small country
sO we can bully it?

MR. LAZO: — and this guy in Cuba’s a
sawed-off dictator who is in a tiny little
country of eight million people,the size of the
State of Pennsylvania. There’s no reason to
think of treating Castro the way you would
treat the rulers of Russia and China. | don’t
go along with that. | consider —
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MR. BUCKLEY: Excuse me.
MR. LAZO: Go ahead.

MR. BUCKLEY: You can enter into this,
Mr. Hunt, since we're not talking about
Watergate.

Is it your point that because Cuba —
and how would this sound inside the inner
councils of CIA — is vulnerable to American
pressure in a sense that the Soviet Union is
not, therefore it makes sense to take a hard
line with Cuba even while we're taking a soft
line toward the Soviet Union?

MR. HUNT: Yes, that makes sense to
me. Castro-Cuba, of course, is a client state
of the Soviet Union, and | think it’s a matter
of record among people who study Latin
American affairs that Castro has been a
somewhat less than satisfactory client of the
Soviet Union.

MR. BUCKLEY: Insufficient servility?

MR. HUNT: Insufficient servility. Following
the Cuban missile crisis, there were a great
many problems. He felt himself, in a sense,
abandoned by the loss of his Russian
military advisors. The Soviet Union itself, of
course, is undergoing times of tremendous
economic stress. The mere fact that they
signed the wheat and corn deal with the
United States would indicate that they are
having trouble not only fulfilliing their
internal needs, but this means less for their
client states such as the Arab world — Egypt
in particular, the United Arab Republic, and
Cuba.

Cuba is very small potatoes as far as
the Kremlin is concerned. The death of Che
Guevara, in effect, put an end to the type of
guerrilla activity that Castro had been
promising and promulgating throughout the
hemisphere.

MR. BUCKLEY: Now, wait a minute. Isn’t
this different from what both of you have
been really maintaining over the years? You
wrote a book called Dagger in the Heart.

MR. LAZO: Right.

MR. BUCKLEY: How can a country be
small potatoes that is a dagger aimed at our
heart? If in fact the ambition of the Soviet
Union is to rule the world, as both of us
think it to be, how can you say that they
consider Cuba to be small potatoes?
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MR. LAZO: 1'll tell you how. Because Cuba
is an unsinkable aircraft carrier positioned
90 miles from your shores.

MR. BUCKLEY: But they're not small
potatoes then.

MR. LAZO: Not in that respect.
MR. BUCKLEY: Well, that's —

MR. LAZO: Small potatoes as far as getting
rid of the sawed-off dictator, of course. He
doesn’t mean that. Cuba is a dagger pointed
at the heart. It's —

MR. BUCKLEY: Well, then why wouldn’t
the Soviet Union be prepared to make
maximum sacrifices, as indeed it has done —
I’ve seen the estimate of a million dollars per
day. Is that unreasonable?

MR. HUNT: Not unreasonable, no.

MR. BUCKLEY: Okay. A million dollars a
day is not something that you forward as a
subsidy for a small-potato client state.

MR. LAZO: Well, there —

MR. BUCKLEY: If it were situated in
mid-Africa or something like that, they
probably wouldn’t pay a million dollars. It
wouldn’t be worth it. But situated where
they are now, it is an important lesion in the
Caribbean basin, isn’t it?

MR. HUNT: It's quiescent at the time. On
the other hand, we have no reason to believe
that there are not Soviet military
implacements in Cuba in a state of readiness.
We dont know. There have been no
American or international observers who
have ever gone there.

MR. BUCKLEY: Why doesn’t the CIA
know?

MR. HUNT: | would say because of post
Bay of Pigs restrictions and the parameters
of intelligence activity directed at the island
republic.

MR. BUCKLEY: An American citizen is not
entitled to rest confident that the CIA
knows whether there are or there are not
massive Soviet offensive weapons buried in
Cuba?

MR. HUNT: No, he is not.



MR. LAZO: What was your answer to that?
MR. HUNT: No, he is not.

MR. BUCKLEY:
technical aspersion

MR. HUNT: No, |
in any government
allocated for

Now, are you
on CIA?

am simply saying that, as
agency, funds are
areas of activity.
Obvnously Vietnam, Laos, Cambodia, the
entire Asian picture  has
monopolized most of the American Military
and intelligence budget for 3 number of
years.

making a

presume.

(laughter)

support activity
the world — and

funds have to come from Somewhere, They
generally

Air Force.

There hag been a tendency, | think,
within the entire government to do nothing,
or if anything is done at all, it is to provide
the appearance rather than the substance of
action. And accordingly | answer your jnjtja|
question in that sense, Bil].

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes. So it isn't that it
couldn’t be done. It's that —

MR. HUNT: Right.

MR. BUCKLEY:
kind of priority,

— we haven’t given it that

MR. HUNT: We
— and after all, |
ago from CIA.

may not, to my knowledge
retired two and a half years

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes.
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MR. HUNT: At that time | myself was not
confident that there were nNot missiles o
other offensive weapons jnp Cuba, placed
there by the Soviet Union.

MR. BUCKLEY: Well, Senator
says, "“Look, let’s for God'’s sake

Kennedy
go ahead

“Don’t
Cuba is
and if
work
the

| understand you to be saying,
give in to Kennedy's advice because
having very, Very serious difficylties
We continue to let natural pressures
Cuba, it might  resy|t in
overthrowing of 5 despotic government.’”

MR. LAZO: Not only might result; it would
certainly resylt without any question.

MR. BUCKLEY: By when?

MR. LAZO: By when? Well, that’s a
of course, but
think he’s very
ready to take to

guess,
Very soon, in My opinion. |
close to the end. People are

that kind,
But mr. Buckley, let me 9o back just 3
second to Watergate. May 1 do that?

MR. BUCKLEY: Sure.

MR. LAZO: And mention my friend Barker?
MR. BUCKLEY: Sure.

MR. LAZO:
of Pigs —

I have told You about the Bay

MR. BUCKLEY: You have, yes.

¢ — and how humiliated Barker
felt about that, having worked at it ang been

money was co
McGovern ¢ampaign fung.

MR. LAZO: From where?



MR. BUCKLEY: From whom, ves.

MR. LAZO: Communist

money.

From Cuba,

MR. BUCKLEY: From what people in
Cuba? You mean from friends of yours, or
what?

MR. LAZO: Well, | had many sources.
MR. BUCKLEY: Of information.

MR. LAZO: Many sources. We didn't have
proof, of course. We just had these reports.
If we had proof it wouldn’t have had to be
investigated; you know that. So there were
these reports, and this group conducted, in
my  opinion, a patriotic, honorable
counterintelligence operation.

| asked a friend of mine in Norfolk,
where | live, the other day if he knew what
counterintelligence meant, and he said, “'No,
what is it?” This guy’s a Harvard graduate.
And | said to him —

MR. BUCKLEY: No wonder, then.
(laughter)

MR. LAZO: Well, | said, “lt's a very risky
operation, very secret, and it’s designed to
uncover men, women, and activities working
against the United States.” And of course
every country in the world does it.

MR. BUCKLEY: Well, if that’s true, then
the  Watergate people were  direct
instruments of the government, if what you
say is true. | mean, you don’t conduct
counterintelligence operations sua sponte,
do you?

MR. LAZO: What?

MR. BUCKLEY: Sua sponte, of your own
decision.

MR. LAZO: These were very highly trained
men, and this question of finding if
Communist money is coming to the United
States is a very difficult thing. They wash
the money-about six times. You know what
that means, don’t you? They put it through
accounts in foreign countries and so forth.
You've got to have very good men to check
on that. They had that report and that’s one
reason they went in —

MR. BUCKLEY: If this is embarrassing you,
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I"ll stop it, according to —

MR. HUNT: It's not embarrassing to me
because it doesn’t affect me one way or the
other. | pleaded guilty to six counts.

MR. LAZO: Now, another reason they had
for going in there is there had been, as
everybody knows, security leaks of classified
information.

incidentally, I'm not saying for a
second that McGovern was in on this or
O’Brien. Of course not. Nobody thinks that
they are. They consider themselves to be
patriots and | think everybody can agree
with that. I’'m not saying that.

MR. BUCKLEY: You're saying somebody
was in on it, right?

MR. LAZO: What?

MR. BUCKLEY: You're saying somebody
was in on it. Look, you received reports
saying that Communist money was going
into the Democratic organization —

MR. LAZO: Which had a $9 million deficit
and which needed the money.

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes, ves, right. Now you're
saying, however, McGovern and O’Brien
didn’t know about it, but all of a sudden
you are crediting those sources. You are
saying, "'l accept the fact that there was
Communist money in the Democratic
operation, but | am exonerating the top guys
of any knowledge of it.”’

MR. LAZO: Yes, | am exonerating the top
guys.

MR. BUCKLEY: But what makes you
accept that allegation?

MR. LAZO: Well, because | think they're
above that sort of thing.

MR. BUCKLEY: No, no, no, no, no. What
makes you accept the allegation that /in fact
there was Communist money in the
Democratic operation?

MR. LAZO: Because, as | say, Castro’s
regime is drawing to an end and he knows
that the only way —

MR. BUCKLEY: No, no, no. That makes —

MR. LAZO: — that he can survive is to have



McGovern as President of the United States.

MR. BUCKLEY: That makes it plausible,
but it does not validate any such flow.

MR. LAZO: You say it makes it logical?
MR. BUCKLEY: Yes, makes it plausible.
MR. LAZO: Well, a lawyer deals in logic.

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes, it’s also logical that
Nixon shouldnt have gone to China but he
did (laughter). So, well, anyway, go ahead.
This is a hypothesis of yours.

MR. LAZO: A hypothesis? No, it's a
conviction from everything | know, and |
have, as | say, many sources of information.
So,counterinte“igence.

Secondly, they were trying to find out
about security leaks. Then, of course, as you
know, there Were rumors that there were
going to be riots Republican

known about that, too.

So there are Very good reasons for this.
And politics is a dirty business, you know
that.  The Americans  all know  that.
McGovern and his campaign compared
Nixon to Hitler on three occasions publicly,
and the Nixon government to the Hijtler
henchmen. That’s the Communist Jine.

In Cuba today whenever Nixon’s name
is printed in the government papers, the way
they print it is N-i-the swastika-o-n. That's
the Communist line. McGovern was doing
that. And this kind of thing is not a parlor
game. It’s not tiddlywinks. It’s 5 —

MR. BUCKLEY: No, but here’s what I'm
trying to say, Mr. Lazo. Assuming that we
accept your hypothesis, then aren’t we
required to accept that people who crashed
Watergate were doing so at the direction of a
responsible official of the United States
government?

MR. LAZO: Not necessarily.
MR. BUCKLEY: Why not?

MR. LAZO: Because they could have been
doing it with anti-Castro Cuban money.
That’s possible.

MR. BUCKLEY: But counterintelligence
operations are usually done in behalf of a
government, aren’t they?

MR. HUNT: For a cause. For a cause.

MR. LAZO: | don‘t know. You don‘t know
where the money was coming from.

MR. BUCKLEY: So  you mean
according to this hypothesis it could
been a completely spontaneous thing?

even
have

MR. HUNT: That’s right.

MR. LAZO: What I'm trying to say is that
this was an honorable —

MR. BUCKLEY: You mean in the same
sense that he (Mr. Lazo) spontaneously
acted as a spy for CIA and Cuba?

MR. HUNT: That's right, and certainly a
couple of years before the Bay of Pigs even
the pro- Castro partisans conducted their
own counterintelligence operations against
Castro, againt Batista. So you don’t need
necessarily to link —

MR. BUCKLEY:
working for The New

thought they were
York Times.
MR. HUNT: - the phrase
"counterintelligence" with employment by a
government, per se, jpso facto,
be

MR.  BUCKLEY: It could

Spontaneously organized?

just

MR. HUNT: By the people who know what
they're doing, yes.

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes, yes.

MR. LAZO: May | say one more thing,
because | think our time js ending.

MR. BUCKLEY: Yes.

MR. LAZO: | consider that this group are
men of honor. They're patriots. | think that
instead of being prosecuted they should be
decorated.

MR. BUCKLEY: Now, wait a minute. You
can’t decorate somebody for breaking the
law, can you?

MR. LAZO: Yes, you can.
(laughter)

MR. BUCKLEY: Well,
example.

give me a recent



MR. LAZO: Well, i’ll give you this example.
When we get our country back, get Cuba
back, | can assure you that the first
government of a free Cuba will decorate this
group. | consider that I'm —

MR. BUCKLEY: No, | can understand that.
| can understand that — just as, say, De
Gaulle undoubtedly decorated a lot of
Frenchmen who shot other Frenchmen who
were collaborating with the Nazis. | can
understand that. But | don’t understand
your taking the position that the American
Justice Department is acting perversely in
prosecuting people who plead guilty to
breaking American laws.

MR..LAZO: There are some things that rise
beyond and above that — love of country.
Let me put it this way: | feel that I'm in the
presence of a great man sitting here, one of
the great men of our time.

You know, when we left Cuba, my
wife and I, we left with $2.00. To lose
everything that you’'ve made your entire life
at the end of a long life is very bad. To lose a
friend the way Barker lost his friend, the
way this gentleman recently lost his wife, is
much worse.

But when you lose honor, you lose
everything. These men have not lost their
honor as far as we believe. And | can assure
you that the 650,000 Cubans in this country
have the highest regard for them. Don’t you
be concerned. We're going to help you in
every way we can, and you still have your
honor. That’s the important thing.

MR. BUCKLEY: Well, but it's only
important, | think, for you, Mr. Lazo, to
acknowledge that, paradoxical though it
may sound, the pursuit of honor can require
temporal punishment.

MR. LAZO: Yes, it can. It —

MR. BUCKLEY: But vyou must not
disparage, necessarily, the people who mete
out that punishment because, in fact, the
two do not contradict each other
philosophically, and certainly not
historically. And in any case, the time is up.
Thank you very much, Mr. Lazo. Thank
you, Mr. Hunt, ladies and gentlemen.
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Excerpt, transckibed from tape recording, of Firing Line
brogram as broadcast broadcast Jan. 21, 1973, by KQED-TV, San
Francisco, showing departures in printed text as issued by the
Southern Education Communications Assgociation, page 8:

MB. HUNT: I have here a 1igt of fouri recommendéations that

I made well before I joined the project, based onm my personal
assessment of the situatior in Cubld. I made thisg in 1959, and

T will list them. The first recommendation I made WAS ..e...
[tape goes blamk for six or seven secondszj «+s+s.t0 destroy
the Cuban radio and television transmitters before or coincident
with the invasion. The third3 was tc destroy the island's
microwave relay system just before the invasion begins, ard the
fourthu, discard any thought of =z popular uprising against
Castro until the issue has already been militarily decided.

- s v s o

1 The word "four" omitted in printed text.

2 Blankout not indicated in printed text.

3 *Third” changed to "seconrd” in printed text.
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"Fourth® changed to"third" in printed text.
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